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0JSC “COMPANY M.VIDEO” AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND
APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the independent auditors’ responsibilities
stated in the independent auditors’ report set out on page 2 is made with a view of distinguishing the
respective responsibilities of the management and those of the independent auditors in relation to

the consolidated financial statements of OJSC “Company M.video” and subsidiaries (the “Group”).

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that present fairly
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2007 and the consolidated results of its
operations, cash flows and changes in shareholders’ equity for the year then ended, in compliance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for:

e  Selecting suitable accounting principles and applying them consistently;
e  Making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e  Stating whether IFRS have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the consolidated financial statements; and

e  Preparing the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Group will continue in business for the foreseeable future.

Management is also responsible for:

e  Designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls
throughout the Group; '

e  Maintaining proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time,
the financial position of the Group, and which enable them to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements of the Group comply with IFRS;

e  Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with local legislation and accounting standards
in the respective jurisdictions in which the Group operates;

e  Taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Group; and
e  Preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 were approved on 29 July 2008
by:
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A. Tynkovan C. Parks
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT Tol: +7 (485 787 G600
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To the Shareholders of Open Joint Stock Company “Company M._video™

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Open Joint Stock
Company “Company M.video™ and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”™), which comprise
of the balance sheet as at 31 December 2007, and the income statement, statement of changes in
sharcholders” equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting poficies and other explanatory notes.

Management's responsibility for the financial siatements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
preseniation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibiliry

conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance on whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obiain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statemnents, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments. the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
staternents m order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overail
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2007, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

\DEL&{?T £ %E Ci5

Moscow
29 Juiy 2008

Member of

Aundir.Tax, Consulting . Financial Advisory. Deloitie Touche Tohmatsu



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY “COMPANY M.VIDEO” AND SUBS IDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007
(in millions of Russian Rubles)

Notes 2007 2006
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Property, plant and equipment 5 4,412 3,424
Construction in process 20 35
Intangible assets 6 29 33
Long term loans and notes receivable 7 5 37
Deferred tax assets 16 723 378
Deferred costs - 9
Advances paid for property, plant and equipment 42 14
Forward exchange contract 32 -
Other assets 23(i) 162 -
Total non-current assets 5,425 3,930
CURRENT ASSETS:
Available for sale investment at cost - 28
Inventories 8 10,187 6,961
Trade accounts receivable 9 76 667
Other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 10 , 758 1 1,307
Value added tax recoverable and other taxes rdaeiva 11 1,590 1,666
Income tax receivable 6 15
Short-term loans and notes receivable 12 15 102
Deferred costs - 8
Short term investment 13 1,290 -
Cash and cash equivalents 14 2,380 932
Total current assets 17,302 11,686
TOTAL ASSETS 22,727 15,616




OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY “COMPANY M.VIDEO” AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007
(in millions of Russian Rubles)

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Issued capital
Additional paid in capital
Retained earnings/(Accumulated deficit)

Total shareholders’ equity

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-term loans and borrowings
Forward exchange contract
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred revenue
Provisions

Total non-current liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Trade accounts payable
Other payables and accrued expenses
Advances received from customers
Bonds payable
Short-term loans and borrowings
Value added tax and other taxes payable
Income tax payable
Deferred revenue
Provisions
Forward exchange contract

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes 2007 2006

15 1,798 1,498
4,576 5
265 (403)

6,639 1,095

17 2,127 2,053
- 15

16 507 470
- 73

23 165 3
2,799 2,614

19 9,176 5.809
20 600 391
293 149

18 118 2,000
22 2,565 2,985
21 98 155
111 342

305 69

23 7 7
16 +

13,289 11,907

16,088 14,521

22,727 15,616

The notes on pages 10 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is

presented on page 2.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors: 29 July 2008

A [T T P e

A. Tynkovan
Chief Executive Officer

C. Parks
Chief Financial Officer




OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY “COMPANY M.VIDEO” AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
(in millions of Russian Rubles)

Notes 2007 2006

REVENUE 24 52,317 36,258
COST OF SALES* 25 (39,953) (28,433)
GROSS PROFIT 12,364 7,825
Selling, general and administrative expenses 26 (11,132) (6,688)
Other operating income 27 947 205
Other operating expenses 28 (167) (195)
OPERATING PROFIT 2,012 1,147
Finance costs, net 29 (776) (411)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1,236 736
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 16 (587) (338)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 649 398
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES FOR

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (in millions) 155 13%%

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (in RUB) 4 31

*For information relating to the prior year reclassification, refer to Note 25.

** The weighted average number of ordinary shares and basic earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders
reported in the Preliminary IFRS consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2006

was 2,607 million and 0.1527 RUB respectively. As stated in Note 15, a reverse share split of 1:200 occurred on

13 July 2007. To ensure comparability from year to year, the weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year
ended 31 December 2006 has been adjusted to arrive at the same basis used for the year ended 31 December 2007.

During December 2006, the Company issued the equivalent of an additional 149 million ordinary shares
(29,833 million shares prior to 1:200 reverse share split) in exchange of issued share capital of
LLC “Standard Invest” and LLC “Sphera Invest” (refer to Note 3).

During 2007, the Company issued an additional 30 million ordinary shares (refer to Note 15).

The notes on pages 10 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is
presented on page 2.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors: 29 July 2008

- JJI_'v_L e O ! *’:ll}a:::--'vw\ (% /Z

A. Tynkovan C. Parks
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer




OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY “COMPANY M.VIDEO” AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
(In millions of Russian Rubles)

Additional paid Retained
in capital earnings/
Share (Accumulated
capital deficit) Total

Balance as at 31 December 2005 1 (523) (522)
Issuance of shares 1,497 - 1,497
Net profit for the year 398 398
Difference arising on transaction with

shareholders, net of tax (Note 5) - 92 92
Related deferred tax (Note 5) - (370) (370)
Balance as at 31 December 2006 1,498 - (403) 1,095
Issuance of shares (Note 15) 300 4,649 - 4,949
Share issuance costs - (92) - (92)
Related deferred tax 16 - 16
Related income tax - 3 - 3
Recognition of share based payment for

ordinary shares previously issued

(Note 30) - - 26 26
Related deferred tax - - (6) (6)
Related income tax - - (1) (1)
Net profit for the year - 649 649
Balance as at 31 December 2007 1,798 4,576 265 6,639

The notes on pages 10 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is

presented on page 2.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors: 29 July 2008

A. Tynkovan
Chief Executive Officer

/

C. Parks

Chief Financial Officer




OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY “COMPANY M.VIDEO” AND SUBS IDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
(In millions of Russian Rubles)
2007 2006
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit for the year 649 398
Adjustments for:
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss 587 338
Interest expense on loans 583 375
Coupon yield expense 171 21
Loss on sale or disposal of property, plant andmgant - 8
Depreciation and amortization of non-current assets 524 299
Net foreign exchange loss (26) (28)
Change in allowance for doubtful debts 53 -
Share-based payment 26 -
Change in allowance for doubtful notes receivable 1 3 -
Change in fair value of forward contracts 22 15
Change in provision for goods returned 23 10
Change in provision for obsolete and slow movingdso 243 206
Change in provision for probable tax risks oth@ntincome tax 7 -
Operating cash flows before movements in workingjteh 2,893 1,642
Increase in inventories (3,469) (1,868
Decrease/(increase) in trade accounts receivable 5 54 (611
Increase in other accounts receivable and prepaienses (481) (1,070
Decrease/(increase) in value added tax recoveasbol@ther taxes
receivable 76 (500
Decrease/(increase) in deferred costs 17 a7
Increase/(decrease) in trade accounts payable 3,367 (1,520
Increase in other payables and accrued expenses 349 312
Increase in advances received from customers 144 101
Increase in warranty provision - 3
(Decrease)/increase in value added tax and otkes fzayable (64) 120
Increase in deferred revenue 163 142
Cash generated by/(used in) operations 3,540 (3,266
Income tax paid (1,126) (322
Interest paid (898) (142
Forward contracts settlement (53) -
Net cash generated by/(used in) operating activite 1,463 (3,730




OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY “COMPANY M.VIDEO” AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
(In millions of Russian Rubles)

2007 2006
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (including construction in
progress) (1,476) (925)
Short term investment with banks (1,690) -
Proceeds from settlement of short term investments 400 -
(Increase)/decrease in advances paid for property, plant and equipment (28) 63
Purchases of intangible assets (19) 20)
Receipts from settlements of loans and notes receivable 114 48
Cash invested in loans and notes receivable 41) (105)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,740) (939)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 4,949 -
Share issuance costs (38) -
Proceeds from sale of equity shares 28 5
Proceeds from borrowings 33,134 16,785
Repayment of borrowings (35,348) (11,927)
Net cash generated by financing activities 2,725 4,863
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,448 194
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS at the beginning of the year 932 738
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS at the end of the year 2,380 932

Refer to Notes 5 and 30 for details of non-cash transactions

The notes on pages 10 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is
presented on page 2.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors: 29 July 2008

, ]
| Z //

A. Tynkovan C. Parks
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer




OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY “COMPANY M.VIDEO” AND SUBS IDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
(In millions of Russian Rubles)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements of OJSC “CGomggM.video” (the “Company”) and subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 20@vevauthorized for issue in accordance with
a resolution of the Board of Directors on 29 JW9&

The Company and its subsidiaries (refer listingilare incorporated in the Russian Federation.

The Company is registered at: 40/12, building 2@hNaya Krasnoselskaya Street, Moscow, 105066,
Russian Federation. Following an Initial Public @ihg of the Company’s shares in November
2007, the Company was admitted to trading on RIEBMICEX in Russia.

LLC “Company M.video” was incorporated on 3 Decem®@03. The reorganization of the Group’s
operational activities occurred over the perioBDéaember 2005, with the full trading operations
commencing on 1 January 2006. As part of the reixgton prior to 1 January 2006 the Group
acquired substantially all of its merchandise itosnfrom a related party of the Group (refer taé\N81).
On 25 September 2006 the Company was reorganmedafiLimited Liability Company to an Open Joint
Stock Company.

The Group is the owner of a chain of consumer gaitt stores operating in the Russian Federation.
The Group specializes in the sale of TV, audioewidHi-Fi, home appliances and digital equipment, a
well as related services.

The Group operates in two sectors: retail and vaadde The retail sector is comprised of a chain of
owned and leased stores (122 stores as at 31 Dec@0ly/; 85 stores as at 31 December 2006)
and two online internet stores that sell to endsusehe wholesale sector is comprised of sales to
other retailers.

The following are subsidiaries of the Company a&laDecember 2007 and 2006:
Name of subsidiary

Proportion of Proportion of

ownership ownership
interest and interest and
voting power voting power
Nature of held, % held, %
business 2007 2006
LLC “M.video Management” Trading 100 100
LLC “M.video Torg” Equipment 100 100
LLC “M.video Trade” Trading 100 100
LLC “Sphera Invest” Real Estate 100 100
LLC “Standard Invest” Real Estate 100 100
LLC “M.video Finance” Finance 100 100
LLC “M.video — Voronezh” Trading - 100
LLC “M.video — Ekaterinburg” Trading - 100
LLC “M.video — Kazan” Trading - 100
LLC “M.video — Krasnodar” Trading - 100
LLC “M.video — Nizhny Novgorod” Trading - 100
LLC “M.video — Oblast” Trading - 100
LLC “M.video — Perm” Trading - 100
LLC “M.video — Petersburg” Trading - 100
LLC “M.video — Rostov on Don” Trading - 100
LLC “M.video — Samara” Trading - 100
LLC “M.video — Saratov” Trading - 100
LLC “M.video — Ufa” Trading - 100
LLC “M.video — Center” Trading - 100

10



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY “COMPANY M.VIDEO” AND SUBS IDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
(In millions of Russian Rubles)

Name of subsidiary Proportion of Proportion of
ownership ownership
interest and interest and

voting power voting power
Nature of held, % held, %
business 2007 2006

LLC “M.video — Chelyabinsk” Trading - 100

LLC “Nivo” Trading - 100

LLC “Techno-smart” Trading - 100

LLC “Triumph MV” Trading - 100

LLC “Universopt” Trading - 100

LLC “Electrosteal” Trading - 100

The following entities were merged into LLC “M.vidé&lanagement” during the year ended
31 December 2007:

LLC “M.video — Voronezh”

LLC “M.video — Ekaterinburg”
LLC “M.video — Kazan”

LLC “M.video — Krasnodar”
LLC “M.video — Nizhny Novgorod”
LLC “M.video — Oblast”

LLC “M.video — Perm”

LLC “M.video — Petersburg”
LLC “M.video — Rostov on Don”
LLC “M.video — Samara”

LLC “M.video — Saratov”

LLC “M.video — Ufa”

LLC “M.video — Center”

LLC “M.video — Chelyabinsk”
LLC “Techno-smart”

LLC “Triumph MV”

The following entities were closed during the yeaded 31 December 2007:

LLC “Nivo”
LLC “Universopt”
LLC “Electrosteal”

Shareholders

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 the registere@lsblaers of OJSC “Company M.video” and
their respective ownership and voting interestseveer follows:

2007 2006
Svece Limited 69.9626% 99.597%
M.video Holding (Cyprus) Limited 0.8331% 0.402%
Various shareholders 29.2043% -
Non-commercial partnership M.video - 0.001%
Total 100% 100%

11



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY “COMPANY M.VIDEO” AND SUBS IDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
(In millions of Russian Rubles)

Ultimate Shareholders

M.video Investment Ltd. (BVI), a company incorp@&ain the British Virgin Islands controls 100%
of the voting and ordinary shares of M.video Hotd{€yprus) Limited and Svece Limited
(a company incorporated in Cyprus), and is thenalte parent entity of the Company.

Mr. Alexander Tynkovan, a citizen of the Russiadétation, has a controlling interest in
M.video Investment Ltd. (BVI).

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POL ICIES
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared im@acoe with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) for the first time.

Basis of Preparation

The Group’s transition date to IFRS was 1 Janu@662The disclosures required by
IFRS 1 “First-time adoption of International Finadreporting Standards” for the transition from
Russian Accounting Standards to IFRS are providédbite 35.

The consolidated financial statements have beqraped on a historical cost basis except for

the valuation of financial instruments in accordandth IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” (“IAS 39”) and valuation of iteairoperty, plant and equipment at the date of
transition to IFRS to arrive at deemed cost asatbby IFRS 1 (more fully described in Note 2).

All companies within the Group maintain their aceting records in accordance with Russian
Accounting Standards (“RAS”). RAS differs substallyifrom those standards generally accepted
under IFRS. Accordingly, the consolidated finanstatements, which have been prepared based on
the Russian statutory accounting records, reflemtd adjustments necessary for such consolidated
financial statements to be presented in accordaitbd FRS.

Functional and presentation currency The consolidated financial statements are pteden
Russian Rubles (“RUB”), which is the Company’s fiimgal and presentation currency. Functional
currency for each Group company has been deternaisdite currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates.

Basis of consolidatior The consolidated financial statements comphiedihancial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Comgasubsidiaries). Control is achieved when
the Company has the power to govern the finanoidlogerating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries aepamed for the same reporting year as the parent
company, using consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the ddtaaguisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidatdd the date that such control ceases.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income axgenses and profits and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in fullammsolidation.

12



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY “COMPANY M.VIDEO” AND SUBS IDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
(In millions of Russian Rubles)

Business and geographic segmenrt§ he Group has only one reportable business aadrgphic
segment thus segment reporting information as reduny IAS 14 “Segment Reporting” has not
been provided.

Going concern- These IFRS consolidated financial statementpraqgared on the going concern
basis.

Foreign currencies- The individual financial statements of each Greutity are presented in

the currency of the primary economic environmernwimch the entity operates (its functional
currency). For the purpose of the consolidatedhiifed statements, the results and financial pasitio
of each entity are expressed in rubles (“RUB"),akhis the functional currency of the Company and
the subsidiaries and the presentation currencthéoconsolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the indiinal entities, transactions in currencies othen tha
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currem)iare recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At each baldmeet slate, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates prevaititigeabalance sheet date. Non-monetary items darrie
at fair value that are denominated in foreign cwies are retranslated at the rates when thedhiev
was determined. Non-monetary items that are meaguterms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognized in profit es i the period in which they arise.

Property, plant and equipment Property, plant and equipment are stated atriisl cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairfoseaés. Deemed cost of the items of property,
plant and equipment existing as at 1 January 26@Gjate of transition to IFRS, was determined on
the basis of fair values determined by independpptaisers as allowed by the provisions of IFRS 1.
Fair value of properties was determined with refeesto market prices, while fair value of the other
items, including the Group’s trade equipment, waslpminantly based on the estimates of depreciated
replacement costs. Historical cost includes experalthat is directly attributable to the acquisitof

the items.

Major replacements or modernizations are capitlared depreciated over their estimated useful.lives
All other repair and maintenance expenditure isgdto the income statement during the financial
period in which it is incurred.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the costaluation of assets over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight line method, on the fwilog bases:

Buildings 20-30 years
Leasehold improvements 2-7 years
Trade equipment 5 years
Security equipment 3 years
Other fixed assets 3-5 years

For leasehold improvements the depreciation peéniciddes the period when the Group has the
possibility to extend the period of the lease,righnto account the legal provisions relating sk
terms, and its intention to seek a long term presé@nthe various retail locations in which it cgtes.
This is relevant for leases of retail space wharha portfolio basis, have a history of successful
renewal. All other leasehold improvements are daated over the shorter of useful life or

the related lease term.

13



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY “COMPANY M.VIDEO” AND SUBS IDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
(In millions of Russian Rubles)

Trade equipment is depreciated over the estimagetiilife specified above unless there is a ptan t
fully renovate the store prior to reaching the ptedmined estimated useful life. In this situation,
the net book value of trade equipment will be dejated over the remaining estimated useful life
being the period of time up to the planned renavatvorks.

The assets’ residual value and useful lives ariewead and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. Where there are indicators that atissseash generating unit's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amourg wititten down to its recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retneinof an asset is determined as the differencveceet
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount ofsthet and is recognized in income.

Construction in process comprises the cost of egeiy in the process of installation and other

costs directly relating to the construction of grdp, plant and equipment including an appropriate
allocation of directly attributable variable oveglds that are incurred in construction. Depreciabion
these assets, on the same basis as for other fyragsets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

Intangible assets- Intangible assets acquired separately are eghattcost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. imation is charged on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimateduldife and amortization method are reviewechat t
end

of each annual reporting period, with the effecamy changes in estimate being accounted for on
a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives per class of intangiisieets are as follows:

Software licenses 5-10 years
Trade marks 5-10 years

Impairment of tangible and intangible assetsAt each balance sheet date the Group reviews

the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangéseets to determine whether there is any inditatio
that those assets have suffered an impairmentlf@ssy such indication exists, the recoverable @amo

of the asset is estimated in order to determinextent of the impairment loss (if any). Wheresihot
possible to estimate the recoverable amount dfidimidual asset, the Group estimates the recowerabl
amount of the cash-generating unit to which thetdsslongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assetsadso allocated to individual cash-generatindgni

or otherwise they are allocated to the smallestgaf cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Taxation — Income tax expense represents the sum of theutagntly payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable fpi@fithe year. Taxable profit differs from prodis
reported in the income statement because it exsliteas of income or expense that are taxable or

deductible in other years and it further excludemss that are never taxable or deductible.

The Group'’s liability for current tax is calculateding tax rates that have been enacted or suibstgnt
enacted by the balance sheet date.

14



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY “COMPANY M.VIDEO” AND SUBS IDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
(In millions of Russian Rubles)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on differences betwhercarrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the correspondindpéae used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognizeddll taxable temporary differences, and deferred
tax assets are generally recognized for all deldiectemporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available iagawhich those deductible temporary differences
can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities ategmpgnized if the temporary difference arisesnfro
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neithiee taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized foraabe temporary differences associated with invesisria
subsidiaries and associates as the Group is abtatl the reversal of the temporary difference iais
probable that the temporary difference will noterse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax agssisg
from deductible temporary differences associatéd svich investments and interests are only recegniz
to the extent that it is probable that there wdlidufficient taxable profits against which to atli

the benefits of the temporary differences and Hreyexpected to be reversed in the foreseeablefutu

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is wedkeat each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that suffitiexable profits will be available to allow all part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measuréteabx rates that are expected to be applied in
the period in which the liability is settled or thgset is realized, based on tax rates (and tes) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted byathede sheet date. The measurement of deferred
tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax conseges that would follow from the manner in whicé th
Group expects, at the reporting date, to recoveettle the carrying amount of its assets andlikigisi

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset wihene is a legally enforceable right to set offrent
tax assets against current tax liabilities and vthey relate to income taxes levied by the samatitax
authority and the Group intends to settle its aqurtax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognized as an egganincome in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items credited or debited directly toigqun which case the tax is also recognized diyec
in equity, or where they arise from the initial agnting for a business combination. In the case of
business combination, the tax effect is taken &twount in calculating goodwill or in determining
the excess of the acquirer’s interest in the nevédue of the acquiree’s identifiable assetdilites

and contingent liabilities over cost.

Fair value — The fair value of investments that are activedged in organized financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid patése close of business on the balance sheet date
For investment where there is no active market Maue is determined using valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arms lengtkenhtransactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument, which is substantitiiy same; discounted cash flow analysis or other
valuation models.
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Financial assets- Investments are recognized and derecognizedra@ date, where the purchase
or sale of an investment is under a contract wiesas require delivery of the investment within
the timeframe established by the market concered are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs, except for those financial asdassified as at fair value through profit orslos
which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the followspgcified categories: financial assets as ‘atlire
through profit or loss’ (“FVTPL"), ‘held-to-matustinvestments’, ‘available-for-sale’ (“AFS”)
financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’. Tésification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the dinmatial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of caliind) the amortized cost of a financial asset &nd o
allocating interest income over the relevant peridte effective interest rate is the rate that #yac
discounts estimated future cash receipts througlexipected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognized on an effective interest asidebt instruments other than those financisées
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL whHerdihancial asset is either held for trading as it
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading

. It has been acquired principally for the purposeadling in the near future; or

. It is a part of an identified portfolio of finantimstruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-termtptaing; or

. It is a derivative that is not designated and ¢ifecas a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset feldrading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

. Such designation eliminates or significantly reduaeaneasurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e The financial asset forms part of a group of finahassets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluatedl fair value basis, in accordance with
the Group’s documented risk management or invedtstetegy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

. It forms part of a contract containing one or memgbedded derivatives, and IAS 39 “Financial
instruments: recognition and measurement” perrhésentire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair valith, any resultant gain or loss recognized in iprof
or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in pafioss incorporates any dividend or interest eérne
on the financial asset. Fair value is determineithéhmanner described in Note 2 above.
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Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are recorded at ampedticost using the effective interest method less
impairment, with revenue recognized on an effecyieédd method. For the periods covered by
the accompanying financial statements, the Grodmdt hold any investments in this category.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivableésthe fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classified as ‘l@ntsreceivables’. Loans and receivables are mesur
at amortized cost using the effective interest oekthss any impairment and bad debts. Interestriaco

is recognized by applying the effective interest raxcept for short-term receivables when

the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are those rnenivdtive financial assets that are designated

as available for sale or are not classified in aihe three preceding categories. After initial
measurement, available for sale financial assetmaiasured at fair value with unrealized gains or
losses being recognized directly in equity in teeunrealized gains reserve. When the investment
is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss presliprecorded in equity is recognized in the income
statement. Interest earned or paid on the investnereported as interest income or expense using
the effective interest rate. Dividends earned @estments are recognized in the income statement
as ‘Dividends received’ when the right or paymemténbeen established.

For available for sale investments for which thiereo reliable market information to determine fair
value, the investments are carried at cost.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, aesasd for indicators of impairment at each balance
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired whea thebjective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial rectigmiof the financial asset, the estimated futashc
flows of the investment have been impacted. Famiimal assets carried at amortized cost, the amount
of the impairment is the difference between the&ssarrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at themalgeffective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduay the impairment loss directly for all finaricia
assets with the exception of trade accounts reblgiwahere the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. When a trade atsoeceivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recewvareamounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in theiogragnount of the allowance account are recognized
in profit or loss.

With the exception of AFS equity instruments,rifai subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linkediwdjeto an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impaitriass is reversed through profit or loss to

the extent that the carrying amount of the investragthe date the impairment is reversed does

not exceed what the amortized cost would have badrhe impairment not been recognized.

In respect of AFS equity securities, any increasiir value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognized directly in equity.
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Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only whemrontractual rights to the cash flows from

the asset expire; or it transfers the financiadasd substantially all the risks and rewardsaofership

of the asset to another entity. If the Group neittensfers nor retains substantially all the riskd
rewards of ownership and continues to control tlwesferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liabditymounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of owngrslfia transferred financial asset, the Group nost

to recognize the financial asset and also recog@izmllateralised borrowing for the proceeds wecki

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issuelay the Group

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as efthancial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidereessidual interest in the assets of an entisr aft
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instrumenissued by the Group are recorded as the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are meegumitially at their fair values and are subsedlyen
measured at the higher of:

. The amount of the obligation under the contractjetermined in accordance with IAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingégsets”; and

. The amount initially recognized less, where apgeter cumulative amortization recognized
in accordance with the revenue recognition polisitsout below.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either fic&l liabilities at FVTPL or other financial lidhies.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified at FVTPL whehe financial liability is either held for tradirag it
is designated at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for ttag if:

. It has been incurred principally for the purposeegfurchasing in the near future; or

. It is a part of an identified portfolio of finanti@struments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-termtptaKing; or

. It is a derivative that is not designated and ¢ifecas a hedging instrument.
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A financial liability other than a financial lialiy held for trading may be designated at FVTPLmupo
initial recognition if:

. Such designation eliminates or significantly redugeneasurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise; or

*  The financial liability forms part of a group oféincial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluatedl fair value basis, in accordance with
the Group’s documented risk management or invedtsieategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

. It forms part of a contract containing one or memgbedded derivatives, and IAS 39 “Financial
instruments: recognition and measurement” permésentire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at faalwe, with any resultant gain or loss recognized
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognireg@rofit or loss incorporates any interest paid on
the financial liability. Fair value is determinadthe manner described in Note 2 above.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowingate initially measured at fair value, net of trastisen
costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequentgasured at amortized cost using the effectiezdst
method, with interest expense recognized on acteféeyield basis.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities whand only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Share-based paymentsEquity-settled share based payments to empl@reameasured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant dastails regarding the determination of the faiueal
of equity-settled share-based transactions areuset Note 30.

The fair value determined at the grant date oktingty-settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, Basethe Group’s estimate of equity instruments tha
will eventually vest. At each balance sheet daie Group revises its estimate of the number oftgqui
instruments expected to vest. The impact of thisigavof the original estimates, if any, is recamgpu

in profit or loss over the remaining vesting penath a corresponding adjustment to retained egmin

Derivative financial instruments- The Group enters into derivative financial insients to manage

its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk oroitsiin currency denominated debt, namely foreign
exchange forward contracts. The Group does ndiedge accounting for these derivatives. As a result
such derivative financial instruments are treatedther financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL.

Gains and losses are recognized for the chandas walue of forward contracts and presented as
part of finance costs of the Group.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts iswalted by reference to current forward exchange
rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles.

Costs of an equity transaction The Group has incurred various costs in issitgngwn equity
instruments. These costs include but are not ldrtikeamounts paid to professional advisers, legal
counsel, auditing fees, registration and otherledgry fees and printing costs. The transactiornscos
of an equity transaction are accounted for as aatamh from equity (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental cosectly attributable to the equity transaction that
otherwise would have been avoided.
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The amount of transaction costs accounted fordeglaction from equity in the period is disclosed
separately. The related amount of income taxegreoed directly in equity is included in the aggty
amount of current and deferred income tax creditezharged to equity.

Value added tax Value added tax related to sales is payable tad#xorities on the earliest of

(a) collection of the receivables from customerédelivery of the goods or services to customers
Input VAT is generally recoverable against salesi\Uoon receipt of the VAT invoice. Input VAT on
construction in progress can be reclaimed on recédAT invoices for the particular stage of work
performed or, if the construction in progress mb@Ean not be broken down into stages, on recéipt o
VAT invoices upon completion of the contracted work

VAT is generally allowed to be settled on a neti$©a$AT related to sales and purchases which have
not been settled at the balance sheet date ismzeahin the balance sheet on a gross basis and
disclosed separately as an asset and liability.ré/agrovision has been made for the impairment of
receivables, the impairment loss is recorded fergitoss amount of the debtor, including VAT.

Inventories— Inventories are recorded at the lower of avetag or net realizable value.

In-bound freight related costs from our suppligesiacluded as part of the net cost of merchandise
inventories. Certain supplier bonuses that areenotbursement of specific, incremental and ideatiif
costs to promote a supplier’'s products are aldaded in the cost of inventory. Other costs assedia
with storing and transporting merchandise inveetto our retail stores are expensed as incuregkd an
included as part of selling, general and admirtisgaxpenses.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling pincene ordinary course of business less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs negessamake the sale.

Cash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalents comprise cash at,barkansit and on
hand in stores and short term deposits with annalignaturity of three months or less.

Borrowing costs- Borrowing costs are recognized in the incomtestant in the period in which they
are incurred.

Provisions— Provisions are recognized when the Group hassept obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be regdito settle the obligation, and a reliable eséncan
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the béish@&® of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet ddtmg into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits requtinezkttle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognizedmsasset if it is virtually certain that reimbursnt
will be received and the amount of the receivahlelme measured reliably.

Warranties

Warranties are generally covered by the brand owinectly or through their authorized agents in
Russia.

When a supplier is unable to offer warranty sewvime their products in the Russian Federation,
the Group makes a provision for warranty costssélmsts are recognized at the date of sale of
the relevant products at management’s best estioh#te expenditure required to settle the Group’s
obligations.
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Revenue recognitior- Revenue is measured at the fair value of theideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated custosturns, rebates, discounts and value added
tax. Inter-company revenue is eliminated. The feitg specific recognition criteria must also be
met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized wheheafollowing conditions are satisfied:

e The Group has transferred to the buyer the sigmifidsks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e The Group retains neither continuing manageriabivement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the gosddd;

e The amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
. It is probable that the economic benefits assatiaith the transaction will flow to the entity; and
e The costs incurred or to be incurred in respetheftransaction can be measured reliably.

The Group has two categories of goods for resatailrand wholesale.

Retail revenue (excluding revenue from sale of ailatial service agreement$3 recognized at

the point of sale or when the delivery is complétiater. Retail sales are transacted by eitheh @a
credit card. The recognized revenue includes coadiit fees payable for the transaction. Such emsts
presented in operating expenses.

Wholesale revenues recognized when the customer has collecteddbds from the warehouse or

when goods are delivered and accepted at the cestowarehouse and after satisfying the criteria
outlined above.

Additional service agreements

Revenue from the sale of additional service agre¢srie recognized on an 'as earned' basis with
the unearned portion (if any) spread over the reingiterm of the contracts to reflect the costs

the Group expects to incur in performance of itstiactual obligations. The revenue is recognized
in full when no further costs are expected to loelired.

Costs directly associated with the sale of additieervice agreements, such as sales bonuse®paid t
shop assistants, as well as commission paid t@ p#rées to provide full or partial coverage of

the Group’s obligations under existing additioral&e agreements are recognized in the income
statement on the same basis as related revenue.

Revenue from the sale of additional service agredsrie disclosed within retail revenue.

Revenue from services

Revenue from services is recognized in the perioghich the services have been rendered.
The following conditions are also satisfied:

. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. It is probable that the economic benefits assogiaftieh the transaction will flow to the entity;

*  The stage of completion of the transaction at #iarice sheet date can be measured reliably;
and

e The costs incurred for the transaction and thesdostomplete the transaction can be measured
reliably.
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Agents

The Group recognizes as revenue any sales perfaimad agent at net amounts. Such fees include
sales of telephone service contracts, servicersidlliation fees.

Gift cards

The Group sells gift cards to its customers imatsil stores and through its website. The giftlsar
have an expiration date and are required to bedwsany specified periods of time. The Group recogs
income from gift cards when: (i) the gift card éleemed by the customer; or (ii) when the gift sard
expire.

Supplier bonuses- The Group receives bonuses from suppliers. idpsier bonuses are treated as
volume allowances unless they are subject to aatpagreement which is specific, incremental and
identifiable. Supplier bonuses which are earnedddyeving certain volume purchases are recorded
when it is reasonably assured the Group will reébheke volumes. Supplier bonuses based on volume
are recorded as a reduction of the carrying costeoinventory to which they relate. Supplier baws
provided as a reimbursement of specific, incrementd identifiable costs incurred to promote a
supplier's products are included as an expensasget cost) reduction when the cost is incurred.

Leases- The Group has not entered into any finance seahough it does have a significant number
of operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as ansxpera straight line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is moregeptative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed. @entimentals arising under operating leases are
recognized as an expense in the period in whichdhe incurred. The impact of lease escalation
clauses are recognized in expenses in the periathich they are activated.

Any benefits received from the landlord as an itigerto enter into an operating lease are spread
over the lease term on a straight line basis.

Pre-opening expenses Expenses incurred in the process of openingsteres which do not meet
capitalization criteria under IAS 16 “Property, mi@nd equipment” are expensed as incurred.
Such expenses include rent, utilities and otheraipg expenses.

Employee benefits The Group contributes to the Russian Federatiae pension, medical and
social insurance and employment funds on behafldts current employees by paying unified
social tax ("UST"). Any related expenses are redogphin the income statement as they become
due. The Group does not operate any employer spashgension plans.
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3.

CHANGES IN IFRS STANDARDS AND THEIR ADOPTION BY THE GROUP

The following new or revised standards and intdégti@ns issued by IASB and IFRIC have been
published at the date of authorization of the Gi®uapnsolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007, but are not yet effectidengll be mandatory for adoption in the Group’s
financial statements for periods ending after 3tdbaber 2007:

IAS 1 (revised) “Presentation of Financial Stateta&affective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2009. The revision requiepaate presentation of owner and non-owner
changes in equity by introducing the statemenbafgrehensive income. The statement of
recognized income and expense will no longer begmted. Whenever there is a restatement or
reclassification, an additional balance sheett #seabeginning of the earliest period presented,
will be required to be published. There will beeitect on the Group’s reported income or

net assets.

IAS 23 (revised) “Borrowing costs” effective forramal periods beginning on or after

1 January 2009. The revision to IAS 23 removethton of immediately recognizing as

an expense borrowing costs that are directly attaitle to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset. A qualifying asseone that takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for use or sale. An entity is, thenefoequired to capitalize such borrowing costs as
part of the cost of the asset. Currently, borrovdasgts are recognized by the Group as an expense
when incurred. The Group has significant borrowdogts and is currently evaluating the potential
impact of IAS 23 (revised) on the financial stateisgresentation.

IAS 27 (revised) “Consolidated and Separate Firer®tatements” effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and are to bdieghpetrospectively, with certain exceptions.
The revision requires the effects of all transatgioith non-controlling interests to be recorded
in equity if there is no change in control. Suangactions will no longer result in goodwill or
gains or losses. When control is lost, any remgiititerest in the entity is remeasured to fair
value and a gain or loss recognized in profit esldhe Group has not yet completed its evaluation
of the effect of adopting this amendment.

IAS 32 (revised) “Financial Instruments: Preseptatiand IAS 1 (revised) “Presentation of
Financial Statements” — Puttable Financial Instmi®mi@nd Obligations Arising on Liquidation

— effective for periods beginning on or after 1ulmy 2009. The revised standard requires entities
to classify as equity certain financial instrumeprsvided certain criteria are met. The instruments
to be classified as equity are puttable financiatruments and those instruments that impose
an obligation on the entity to deliver to anotharty a pro rata share of the net assets of thig/enti
only on liquidation. The Group has not yet compldte evaluation of the effect of adopting these
amendments.

IFRS 2 (revised) “Share-based Payment” effectiveafmual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2009. The revision was issued in Jar2@08, and clarifies that only service conditions
and performance conditions are vesting conditiand,other features of a share-based payment are
not vesting conditions. In addition, it specifibat all cancellations, whether by the entity or
other parties, should receive the same accountiagment. The Group has not yet completed

its evaluation of the effect of adopting this amaiedt.

IFRS 3 (revised) “Business combinations”. The redlistandard still requires the purchase
method of accounting to be applied to business gmatibns but will introduce some changes to
existing accounting treatment. For example, coetimgonsideration should be measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition and subsequesttheasured to fair value with changes recognized
in profit or loss. Goodwill may be calculated basedthe parent’'s share of net assets or it may
include goodwill relating to the minority interestll transaction costs will be expensed.
Business combinations occurring before the dassloption by the Group will not be restated

and thus there will be no effect on the Group’oregd income or net assets on adoption.
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. IFRS 8 “Operating segments” effective for annualgats beginning on or after 1 January 2009.
The standard requires the disclosure of informaatoout the operating segments of the Group,
the products and services provided by the segmtbetgieographical areas in which the Group
operates, and revenue from the Group’s major cuestrithis standard will supersede IAS 14
“Segment Reporting”. Management expects that adomif this standard will result in
additional disclosure of segmented information.

*  “Improvements to International Financial Report®igndards 2008” issued in May 2008
introduces minor amendments to various existingdsieds. These amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Jan2&@9. No significant changes are currently
expected from the adoption of this pronouncement.

. IFRIC 11 “IFRS 2 — Group and treasury share traima’ effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 March 2007. Management is currergbeasing the impact of this interpretation but
believes that this interpretation should not hasmaificant impact on the Group.

. IFRIC 12 “Service concession arrangements” effedior the annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2008. Service concession arrangsrmsnarrangements whereby a government
or other body grants contracts for the supply afegpment services to private operators.
Management believes that this interpretation isrelgvant to the Group.

. IFRIC 13 “Customer loyalty programmes” effective Bmnual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2008. This interpretation addresses accogty entities that grant loyalty award credits
to customers who buy other goods and services.ifitjadlg, it explains how such entities should
account for their obligations to provide free @atdiunted goods or services to customers who
redeem award credits. Management is currently sisgethe impact of this interpretation but
believes that this interpretation should not hag@aificant impact on the Group.

. IFRIC 14 “IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefisget, Minimum Funding Requirements
and their Interaction” effective for annual peridameginning on or after 1 January 2008.
This interpretation will not be relevant to the Gpaas the Group does not currently have any
long-term defined benefit obligation to its emplege

. IFRIC 15 “Agreements for the Construction of Reslde” and IFRIC 16 “Hedges of a Net
Investment in a Foreign Operation” were issueduly 2008. These interpretations are not
expected to have an impact on the financial statésvaf the Group.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ES TIMATION OF
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting peis;iwhich have been described in Note 2, management
is required to make judgments, estimates and asgmembout the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from atheurces. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other fatltat are considered to be relevant, includingnbu
limited to, the uncertainties and ambiguities @& Russian legal and taxation systems and theudifés

in securing contractual rights as defined in ca$raActual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are redi@n an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in whicleitinate is revised if the revision affects ohigtt
period, or in the period of the revision and futpegiods if the revision affects both current amife
periods.
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Significant estimates and assumptions

Inventory valuation

Management reviews the inventory balances to daterihinventories can be sold at amounts greater
than or equal to their carrying amounts plus ctustell. This review includes identification of glo
moving inventories, obsolete inventories, and pbytor fully damaged inventories. The identificati
process includes historical performance of theritwmgy, current operational plans for the inventory,
as well as industry and customer specific trendsn&ged stock is either provided for or written off
depending on the extent of damage. Management nagesvision for any items considered to be
obsolete. The provision represents the differemterdien the cost of inventory and its estimated net
realizable value.

The net realizable value allowance was calculasiiguthe following methodology:

(@) Stock held for resale — comparison of expecteéhgeatirice versus the carrying value on a stock
keeping unit basis;

(b) Damaged goods — examination of historical dataingldo discounts associated with damaged
goods and comparison to book value at the balameet slate;

(c) Stock held at service centers — a provision isiagflased on managements estimate of the
carrying value of the inventory;

(d) Additional amount is accrued if there is actuatievice of a decline in selling prices after
the reporting period to the extent that such deatwnfirms conditions existing at the end of
the period.

If actual results differ from management’s expeotet with respect to the selling of inventories at
amounts equal to or less than their carrying angumanagement would be required to adjust our
inventory.

Allowances for doubtful accounts receivable

Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable is elisakd if there is objective evidence that the @rou
will not be able to collect the amounts due acewydo original contractual terms and reduces adsoun
receivable to the amounts expected to be collettesktimating uncollectible amounts, management
considers factors such as current overall econeoonmditions, historical customer performance and
anticipated customer performance. The Group’s grons cover individual balances where there is
evidence that losses are probable as at the batheet date. Management uses significant judgment
in estimating uncollectible amounts. While manageinhelieves its processes effectively address
the exposure for doubtful accounts receivable, gbaiin the economy, industry or specific customer
conditions may require adjustments to the allowdoceoubtful accounts receivable recorded in

the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Tax and customs provisions and contingencies

The Group is subject to various taxes arising @Rlssian Federation. The majority of its merchandi
is imported into Russia and is therefore subjethéoRussian customs regulations. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provisionihcome taxes and other taxes. The Group
recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax issuasdil on estimates of whether additional taxeswill
due. Refer to Note 33 for further discussion.
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Recovery of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductinigporary differences as management believes
there will be sufficient future taxable profitsutlize those temporary differences.

Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled transactions with emgésyis based on the Group’s estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will eventually vest ariller estimates outlined in Note 30.

Useful life of property, plant and equipment

Trade equipment is depreciated over the estimaefiiife specified in Note 2 above. The estimated
useful life is adjusted when there is a plan ttyfténovate the store in the near future, in wiiake
carrying value of related trade equipment is deated over the period of time up to the planned
renovation work. During the year ended 31 Decer2béi the Group

Reassessment of useful lives of the trade equipprentpted by revised renovation plans, increased
the consolidated depreciation expense during thewrufinancial year by 22 million RUB

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accoung policies

Recognition of revenue from sale of additional senagreements and associated costs

Revenue earned from the sale of additional seagreements is recognized on an 'as earned' basis
with the unearned portion (if any) spread overrdraaining term of the contracts to reflect the gost
the Group expects to incur in performance of itstartual obligations.

In the absence of sufficient historical claims datang the year ended 31 December 2007 the Group
was recognizing revenue from the sale of additigealice agreements on a straight line basis over
the life of each additional service agreement.di&sussed further in Notes 31 (Related Parties) and
23, during the year ended 31 December 2007 thepzroncluded an agreement with a related party
services provider which assumed substantiallyfathe Group's obligations under all of the existing
and future additional service agreements for aidenastion based on a fixed proportion of fees
charged to customers. As a result the Group imatelgi recognized previously deferred revenue
relating to existing additional services. Revefroen sale of additional services agreements
subsequent to entering into this arrangement sraisognized immediately upon sale as the Group
does not expect to incur any expenses beyond #sealecady paid to a related party service provider

The fixed commission paid to a related party sergintre to provide coverage for the Group’s
obligations under the additional service agreementognized immediately as part of cost of sales
Other direct costs associated with the sale otiaddi service agreements, such as sales bonlges pa
shop assistants are disclosed as part of sellimgrgl and administrative expenses. These costh whi
were previously deferred and charged to the incstatement over the life of the agreements, were
fully recognized during the year ended 31 Decer2béi7.

Supplier bonuses

The Group receives various types of allowances soppliers in the form of volume discounts and
promotional, advertising and stocking fees. Managerhas concluded that substantially all supplier
bonuses received or receivable by the Group sHmeitdeated as volume based, effectively reducing
the cost of goods purchase from the supplierserdttan a reimbursement of specific costs incurred
by the Group.
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5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment as at 31 Decembeéf @00 2006 consisted of the following:

Leasehold
improve- Trade Security
Buildings ments  equipment equipment  Other Total

Cost
As at 31 December 2005 - 63 267 115 191 636
Additions 2,205 464 143 82 198 3,092
Disposals - - - - 9) 9)
As at 31 December 2006 2,205 527 410 197 380 3,719
Additions 83 787 191 122 308 1,491
Disposals - - - - - -
As at 31 December 2007 2,288 1,314 601 319 688 5,210
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 31 December 2005 - - - - - -
Charge for the year 9 42 89 66 90 296
Disposals - - - - (1) (1)
As at 31 December 2006 9 42 89 66 89 295
Charge for the year 112 91 101 71 128 503
Disposals - - - - - -
As at 31 December 2007 121 133 190 137 217 798
Net Book Value
As at 31 December 2006 2,196 485 321 131 291 3,424
As at 31 December 2007 2,167 1,181 411 182 471 4,412

As at 31 December 2007, property, plant and equipmih a carrying amount of 418 million RUB
(31 December 2006: 320 million RUB) was collataradi against a portion of loans provided to
the Group by banks (refer to Notes 17 and 22).

As at 31 December 2007, there were no commitmenthé acquisition of property, plant or equipment
(31 December 2006: nil).

During December 2006 the Group acquired a 100%edstén LLC “Sphera Invest” and

LLC “Standard Invest” in exchange for 29,833 mifliordinary shares issued by the Company.
Prior to these acquisitions, these entities wedeeugommon control. The transactions were treated
as acquisitions of assets. The total cost of ptpgaant and equipment acquired was 2,196 milR&sB.
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The net assets of LLC “Sphera Invest” and LLC “8tad Invest” as at the date of acquisition can be
categorized as follows:

RUB

Buildings 2,182
Security equipment 4
Other property, plant and equipment 10

2,196
Other assets 190
Deferred tax liability (370)
Other liabilities (802)
Net assets 1,214
Consideration (1,492)
Charged to equity (278)

The number of shares issued for property, plantegipment received was based on an external
valuation report. The difference between the nominhue of the shares issued and the fair value of
property and equipment and other related assetBadilities acquired was treated as an adjustment
to equity, net of tax effect.

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets as at 31 December 2007 and 206G#sted of the following:

Software

licenses Trade marks Total
Cost
As at 31 December 2005 17 - 17
Additions 17 3 20
Disposals - (1) (1)
As at 31 December 2006 34 2 36
Additions 17 - 17
Disposals - (1) (1)
As at 31 December 2007 51 1 52
Accumulated amortization
As at 31 December 2005 - - -
Charge for the year 3 - 3
As at 31 December 2006 3 - 3
Charge for the year 20 - 20
As at 31 December 2007 23 - 23
Net Book Value
As at 31 December 2006 31 2 33
As at 31 December 2007 28 1 29

Amortization expense has been included as padlloig general and administrative expenses.

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 the Group had conanis for the acquisition of software
licenses. Refer to Note 33 for further details.
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7. LONG TERM LOANS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE
Long term loans and notes receivable as at 31 Deee007 and 2006 consisted of the following:

Interest rate % Maturity 2007 2006

Promissory notes receivable from October to

third parties 0% December 2009 31 33
Less: provision for doubtful

promissory notes receivable (31) -
Unsecured RUB loans given to

third parties 2% May 2010 5 3
Unsecured RUB loans given to

related parties 0% - 1

Total 5 37

Promissory notes receivable from third partiesesent promissory notes received from DVI Volga.
The promissory notes are unsecured and non-inteeesing.

The promissory note receivable from DVI Volga hasibfully provided for.

For additional information relating to related yddans receivable refer to Note 31.

8. INVENTORIES

Inventories as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 cedsistthe following:

2007 2006
Goods for resale 11,032 7,682
Other inventories 132 13
Less: allowance for obsolete and slow moving goods 977X (734)
Total 10,187 6,961

For information relating to the cost of inventoecognized as an expense during the year ended
31 December 2007 and 2006 refer to Note 25.

As at 31 December 2007 the value of inventory peldas collateral for borrowings from banks was
9,988 million RUB (31 December 2006: 5,001 milliekB).
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9. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Trade accounts receivable as at 31 December 2@D2G06 consisted of the following:

2007 2006
Trade accounts receivable from third parties 165 709
Accounts receivable from related parties - 1
Allowance for goods returns (66) (43)
Allowance for doubtful trade accounts receivable 3)(2 -
Total 76 667
Trade accounts receivable are non-interest bearidgare generally on 7-30 day terms.
Ageing of past due but not impaired trade accorgusivable:

2007 2006
30-60 days 3 5
60-90 days - 9
90-120 days 9
120+ days 21 -
Total 33 14
Movement in the allowance for doubtful trade acdsuaceivable:

2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Impairment losses recognized on accounts receivable 23 -
Amounts written off as uncollectible - -
Amounts recovered during the year - -
Impairment losses reversed - -

Balance as at end of the year 23 -

The Group did not have any individually significamipaired trade accounts receivable balances as
at 31 December 2007.

For details relating to trade accounts receivaldimfrelated parties, refer to Note 31.

Refer to Note 34 for discussion of concentratiocredit risk.
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10. OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAID EXPENSES

11.

Other accounts receivable and prepaid expensds3dsiecember 2007 and 2006 consisted of
the following:

2007 2006
Advances paid to suppliers and prepaid expenses 841,2 756
Other accounts receivable from third parties 479 543
Other accounts receivable from related parties 31 13
Advances paid to related parties - 1
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (36) (6)
Total 1,758 1,307
For details relating to other accounts receivalienfrelated parties refer to Note 31.
Ageing of past due but not impaired other accousteivable from third and related parties:

2007 2006
30-60 days - -
60-90 days 1 4
90-120 days - 2
120+ days 45 26
Total 46 32
Movement in the allowance for doubtful accounts:

2007 2006
Balance as at beginning of the year 6 -
Impairment losses recognized on other receivables 6 3 6
Amounts written off as uncollectible -
Amounts recovered during the year - -
Impairment losses reversed (6) -
Balance as at end of the year 36 6

The receivable impaired as at 31 December 2007Aged 120+ days (31 December 2006: 30-60 days).

VALUE ADDED TAX RECOVERABLE AND OTHER TAXES RECEIVA BLE

Value added tax recoverable and other taxes rdieiaa at 31 December 2007 and 2006 consisteé of th

following:

2007 2006
VAT recoverable 1,580 1,653
Other taxes receivable 10 13
Total 1,590 1,666
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12. SHORT-TERM LOANS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

13.

14.

Short term loans and notes receivable as at 31rbmee2007 and 2006 consisted of the following:

Interest rate % Maturity 2007 2006
Promissory notes from third parties 0% April 2008 12 72
Unsecured RUB loans given to
related parties (2006: 8%) - 30
Unsecured RUB loans given to
third parties 0% February 2008 3 -
Total 15 102

Promissory notes receivable from third partiesesent promissory notes received from DVI
Izhevsk. The promissory notes are unsecured andmerest bearing.

For additional information relating to related gyddans receivable refer to Note 31.
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Short term investments as at 31 December 2007 @8l @nsisted of the following:

Interest rate Maturity 2007 2006
Short term investment (bank) 8.8% May 2008 750 -
Short term investment (bank) 9.1% August 2008 540 -
Total 1,290 -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2d@086 consisted of the following:

2007 2006
Petty cash and cash in stores 67 44
Cash at banks 632 140
Cash in transit 1,241 748
Short term deposits 440 -
Total 2,380 932

As at 31 December 2007 the fair value of cash asti equivalents is equal to their carrying value.

Cash in transit represents cash collected frontttoeip’s stores and not yet deposited into the bank
account at the year end.
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15.

16.

ISSUED CAPITAL
Fully paid issued ordinary shares

As at 31 December 2006 the Company had 29,953 @dts4ued ordinary shares with a par value of
0.05 RUB per share.

As at 29 June 2007 the shareholders of OJSC “Coyniglavideo” approved a reverse share split of
1:200. As at 19 September 2007 the Company registlrs change with the appropriate
governmental agencies and changed the chartethanel riegistry from 29,953,645,400 shares at 0,05
RUB per share to 149,768,227 shares at 10 RUBhaee s

As at 1 November 2007 the Company issued 30,00@&@00#ional ordinary shares at 10 RUB per share.
Changes in the charter were not registered untietuary 2008.

The closing balance of issued ordinary shares 3% Biecember 2007 was 179,768,227 at
10 RUB per share.

Authorized ordinary shares

As at 31 December 2006 the Company had 30,120J0%udthorized ordinary shares with a par value
of 0,05 RUB per share. As part of the reverse shalie(as explained above), all previously authedli
shares with a par value of 0,05 RUB per share waateemed. Subsequent to this, fully paid issued
ordinary shares were equal to the number of awtbdrdrdinary shares. Authorized ordinary shares
were reduced to 149,768,227.

As at 6 September 2007 the shareholders of OJS@pa@oy M.video” approved an additional
60,000,000 authorized ordinary shares at 10 RUBpare, of which 30,000,000 were issued

as fully paid ordinary shares as at 1 November 2Gbanges in the charter were registered as at
19 September 2008.

The closing balance of authorized ordinary shasest 8 December 2007 was 209,768,227 at
10 RUB per share.

Dividends

No dividends have been paid or declared by the @Gmyguring the year ended 31 December 2007
(31 December 2006 — nil).

In accordance with the Russian legislation, divittlemay only be declared to the shareholders of the
Company from accumulated undistributed and unreseearnings as shown in the Company’s
Russian statutory financial statements. OJSC ‘@07 had 21 million RUB of undistributed and
unreserved earnings as at 31 December 2007 (31ibec006: 3 million RUB).

INCOME TAX

The Group’s income taxes for the years ended 3kmber 2007 and 2006 was as follows:

2007 2006
Current tax expense (908) (455)
Deferred tax benefit 321 117
Total income tax expense (587) (338)
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The tax effect on the major temporary differentes give rise to the deferred tax assets anditiaiil
as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 is presented below:

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets
Difference in depreciable value of property, plantl equipment 37 35
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventory 523 176
Adjustment on unrealized profit 41 27
Warranty provision - 2
Accrual for unused vacation 17 7
Provision for goods return 16 10
Deferred revenue 73 35
Fair market adjustment on forward exchange contract - 4
Salary-related accruals 59 2
Adjustments on prepaid expenses - 12
Write off of accounts receivable 7 5
Allowance for doubtful debt 22 -
Loss carry forward 5 29
Losses due to inventory shortages 74 -
Other adjustments 137 34
Total 723 378
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference in depreciable value of property, plantl equipment 358 394
Adjustment on supplier allowances and other adjaatsion
accounts payable 108 66
Deferred cost - 4
Other adjustments 41 6
Total 507 470

The Group has tax losses (refer to table aboveathaavailable indefinitely for offset againstute
taxable profits of the companies in which they ar®@eferred tax assets have been recognized iaatesp
of these losses as they have arisen in subsiditaesre expected to be profitable in future msio

The statutory tax rate effective in the Russianefaiibn during years 2007 and 2006 was 24%.
The taxation charge for the year is different fribiat which would be obtained by applying the statut
income tax rate to the net income before incomeRakow is a reconciliation of theoretical income tax
expense at the statutory rate of 24% to the aetymnse recorded in the Group’s income statement:

2007 2006

Profit before income tax expense 1,236 736
Theoretical income tax expense at statutory rag:1e (296) a77)
Adjustments due to:

Non-deductible expenses, net (231) (129)

Income tax provisions (55) (32)

Income tax expense on dividends (9%) (5) -
Income tax expense (587) (338)
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17.

18.

19.

Taxable temporary differences in relation to inweestts in subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognized as at 31 DéerA007 amounted to 344 million RUB
(31 December 2006: 454 million RUB).

LONG-TERM LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Long-term loans and borrowings as at 31 Decemb@r 20d 2006 consisted of the following:

Interest rate Maturity 2007 2006
EURIBOR (1m)
and (3m) + January to
Secured third parties loans (banksP.74% to 4.5%  March 2009 2,127 2,053
Total 2,127 2,053

The loans and borrowings have been secured byrhepG property, plant and equipment and
inventory (refer to Notes 5 and 8).

BONDS PAYABLE
Bonds payable as at 31 December 2007 and 2006stedsif the following:

2007 2006
Corporate bonds 118 2,000

In November 2006 the Group issued RUB denominabedaollateralized bonds. The maximum
term of these bonds is 3 years with the maturiipd@8 November 2009. The coupon interest rate
paid on the bonds was fixed at 10% for the firgryanly, after which the Group set a new coupon
interest rate. After the setting of the revisedpmurate, the bondholders have the option to either
retain or redeem bonds held. As at 18 November 2@ ¢oupon interest rate was set at 9.5% for a
period of 12 months. The par value of individuahti® is 1,000 RUB.

TRADE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Trade accounts payable as at 31 December 20070@&dc@nsisted of the following:

2007 2006
Trade accounts payable to third parties 9,109 5,723
Trade accounts payable to related parties 67 86
Total 9,176 5,809

Trade accounts payable are non-interest bearinguandormally settled between 30 and 90 days,
depending on individual supplier terms.

For terms and conditions relating to related ppeyables refer to Note 31.
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20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Other payables and accrued expenses as at 31 Dec26tly and 2006 consisted of the following:

2007 2006
Accrued salaries and bonuses 239 55
Accounts payable for property, plant and equipment 213 42
Accrued unused vacation 70 30
Other accrued expenses 44 16
Other current liabilities to related parties 20 10
Other current liabilities to third parties 13 97
Bond coupon yield payable 1 21
Interest payable to related parties - 118
Interest payable to third parties - 2
Total 600 391

Interest is settled periodically depending on drens of the loan agreement.

Interest payable on the Bonds is settled semi-diynwafer to Note 18).

21. VALUE ADDED TAX AND OTHER TAXES PAYABLE

Taxes payable as at 31 December 2007 and 2006stexhsif the following:

2007 2006
VAT payable 18 102
Other taxes payable 80 53
Total 98 155

22. SHORT-TERM LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Short-term loans and borrowings as at 31 Decemb@r and 2006 consisted of the following:

Interest rate % 2007 2006

Unsecured bank overdraft — RUB (2006: 8%) - 31
Loans from banks

Secured loan (RUB) (2006: 7.5% to 7.6%) - 1,552
Secured loan (USD) 8% to 8.5% 1,963 -
Secured loan (EUR) 7.39% to 7.84% 602 -
Total short-term loans from third parties 2,565 1,552
Unsecured RUB loans from related parties (2006: 1d%5%) - 1,402
Total 2,565 2,985

The secured loans referred to in the table above baen secured by the Group’s property, plant
and equipment and inventory (refer to Notes 5 gnd 8

For additional information relating to related padans payable refer to Note 31.
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23.

24.

PROVISIONS
Non-current Current
2007 2006 2007 2006
Warranty provision — in respect of
additional service agreements (ASA) (i) 162 - - -
Warranty provision — repair of goods (ii) 3 3 7 7
Total 165 3 7 7

The movement in provisions during the year is repnéed as follows:

Warranty — Warranty —
ASA - Repair of goods
Balance as at 1 January 2007 - 10
Additional provisions recognized 162 -
Balance as at 31 December 2007 162 10

(i) The warranty provision in respect of additionalBer agreements represents management’s best estima
the future outflow of economic benefits that widl kequired under the Group’s 2, 3 and 5 year antditi
service agreements. A Group entity sells the amfuitiservice agreements directly to customers, heryve
a back-to-back agreement entered into betweenringpntity and a related party during the yeaednd
31 December 2007 transfers the obligations un@eadadlitional service agreement from the group to
the related party. For this reason an equal casrepg non-current asset has been recognized lyrthep,
and disclosed within other assets. The estimatbédas made on the basis of historical warrantydsemd
may vary as a result of events affecting produetityu

(i) The warranty provision in respect of repairgaiods represents management’s best estimate fftthe
outflow of economic benefits that will be requiredservice goods sold for which there is no supplie
service centre in the Russian Federation.

REVENUE

Revenue for the years ended 31 December 2007 d@@c@Msisted of the following:

2007 2006
Retail revenue (including internet) 48,410 31,417
Wholesale revenue 3,900 4,831
Other 7 10
Total 52,317 36,258

An amount of 15 million RUB relating to revenuerfrdhe sale of additional service agreements,
and disclosed as “Other” revenue for the year edeecember 2006 has been reclassified as
“Retail revenue” for comparative purposes. Revenom the sale of additional service agreements
is derived through the Group’s retail network, ahduld be disclosed as retail revenue accordingly.
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25. COST OF SALES

Cost of sales for the years ended 31 December 2002006 consisted of the following:

2007 2006
Cost of goods and services 41,544 29,593
Inventory losses 401 192
Change in provision for obsolete and slow movingirtory 243 206
Supplier bonuses (2,235) (1,558)
Total 39,953 28,433

An amount of 209 million RUB relating to incomerincsupplier advertising disclosed as other
operating income for the year ended 31 Decembe B@6 been reclassified to cost of sales.

This reclassification has increased the amounswbplier bonuses” and reduced total cost of sales
above. As stated in Note 2, all supplier bonusedraated as volume bonuses unless they are stdject
a separate agreement which is specific, incremanthidentifiable. The 209 million RUB relating to
income from supplier advertising was volume related

26. SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling, general and administrative expenses fy#ars ended 31 December 2007 and 2006
consisted of the following:

2007 2006
Payroll and related taxes 3,058 1,630
Lease expenses 1,940 1,351
Advertising and promotional expenses 1,646 1,281
Transportation 1,131 559
Warehouse services 794 428
Depreciation and amortization 524 299
Security 295 125
Service centre 247 146
Utilities expense 222 165
Bank charges 189 92
Repairs and maintenance 184 155
Consulting services 162 77
Packaging and raw materials 153 41
Travel 96 59
Communication 91 54
Taxes other than income tax 56 17
Bad debt expense 53 6
Training and recruitment 50 37
Office expenses 49 51
Insurance 43 23
Legal and audit expenses 24 37
Commissions - 8
Other 125 47
Total 11,132 6,688
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27.

28.

29.

30.

Payroll and related taxes includes a 244 milliorBRidntribution to the state pension plan
(831 December 2006:146 million RUB) and social aretlival insurance in the amount of
218 million RUB (31 December 2006: 138 million RUB)

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other income includes commissions received fronkdam loans provided to customers,
goods delivery and other individually insignificatems.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses for the year ended 31nilwe2007 mainly consisted of a provision for
doubtful loan receivables in the amount of 31 millRUB (31 December 2006: nil), foreign currency
losses in the amount of 28 million RUB (31 Decenf296: 18 million RUB) and other individually
insignificant items.

FINANCE COSTS, NET

Finance costs for the years ended 31 December@@)2006 consisted of the following:

2007 2006
Interest on bank loans 505 187
Coupon yield on corporate bonds 171 21
Loss on realized forward contracts 53 -
Interest on non-bank loans 78 118
Other - 70
Change in fair value of forward contracts (31) 15
Total 776 411

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Employee share option plan

The Group has an ownership-based compensation scloeraxecutives and senior employees of
the Group. In accordance with the provisions ofglam, as approved by the Board of Directors at
a Board meeting held on 28 June 2007, 1,498,682c0€ompany’s existing ordinary shares were
set aside (granted) by the controlling sharehoBrecutives and senior employees (35 persons in
total) have been granted the right to purchasanargishares at an exercise price of 10 RUB per
ordinary share. Before the options are exercis@ijehds are accrued to current shareholders.

Each employee share option allows the recipieputchase one ordinary share of Open Joint Stock
Company “Company M.video” from the M.video Investrihitd. (BVI). The proceeds from

the purchase is payable to the existing sharehditteamounts are paid or payable by the recipient o
receipt of the option. The options carry neithghts to dividends nor voting rights. Employees must
be employed at the vesting date to exercise hHieoright unless the Board of Directors waives this
condition. Options may be exercised within 30 dags the date of vesting.
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The number of options granted per employee has theinmined by the Chief Executive Officer
and approved by the Board of Directors.

The following share-based payment arrangements wengistence during the current reporting
period:

Option series Number Grant date Vesting date  Expiry date Exercise price Fair value at
(RUB) grant date
(RUB)
Issued 1 October 2007 207,500 October 2007 1 April 2008 30 April 2008 10 163.92
Issued 1 October 2007 207,50@ October 2007 1 April 2009 30 April 2009 10 164.67
Issued 1 October 2007 207,500 October 2007 1 April 2010 30 April 2010 10 165.66

No share-based payments arrangements were inreestieiring the comparative reporting period.

The weighted average fair value of the share optgranted during year ended 31 December 2007 is
164.75 RUB (2006: Not applicable). Options weregdi using the Black Scholes pricing model.
Where relevant, the model has reflected managembast estimate of the future volatility of the
Company’s share price, expected dividend yield;frise interest rates and expected staff turnover.
Management draw upon a variety of external souwesd in the determination of the appropriate
data to use in such situations.

Inputs into the model Series 1 Series 2 Series 3
Grant date share price 173.40 173.40 173.40
Exercise price 10 10 10
Expected volatility 20.68% 20.68% 20.68%
Option life (years) 0.50 1.50 2.50
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 10% 10% 10%

The expected volatility was determined based orettting weekly share price for the period
1 November 2007 (listing date) to 31 December 200@. expected volatility is equal to the historical
volatility due to the brief history of trading adgty and lack of comparable industry data.

The following reconciles the outstanding shareaigranted under the employee share plan at
the beginning and end of the financial year 2007

Weighted
average
Number of exercise price
options (RUB)

Balance at the beginning of financial year -
Granted during the financial year 622,500 10
Forfeited during the financial year - -
Exercised during the financial year - -
Expired during the financial year -
Balance at the end of the financial year 622,500 10
Exercisable at the end of the financial year - -
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31.

An expense of 26 million RUB has been recognizethduthe year ended 31 December 2007 in
respect of share-based payments (31 December Ri)0Ghis expense relates to equity-settled share-
based payments. The expense has been discloséu seiling, general and administrative expense in
the line item “payroll and related taxes” (Note.ZB)e corresponding entry has been reflected within
retained earnings.

The services received in respect of the share-h@sgtents discussed above do not qualify for
recognition as assets.

The equity settled share-based payments made diméngear did not result in a dilution of shares
due to reasons outlined above.

Balance at the end of the financial year

The share options outstanding at the end of tlanéial year 2007 have an exercise price of 10 RUB
(2006: Not applicable), and the weighted averageairing contractual life is 486 days (2006: Not
applicable).

RELATED PARTIES

Related parties include shareholders, key managepmities under common ownership and control,
and entities over which the Group has significafiience.

The consolidated financial statements include ithenicial statements of OJSC “Company M.video”
and its subsidiaries which are listed in Note 1ri@al Information”.

The following table provides the total amount @nsactions, which have been entered into with
related parties for the relevant financial year {fidormation regarding outstanding balances as at
31 December 2007 and 2006, also refer to Notes1Q,9.2, 19, 20, 22):

2007 2007 31 December 2007 2006 2006 31 December 2006
Sales/purchases from Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts
related party Sales to Purchases  owed by owed to Sales to Purchases  owed by owed to
related from related related related related from related related related
parties parties parties parties parties parties parties parties
Entities under common control
LLC “Sphera Invest” - - 89
LLC “Standard Invest” - 1 72 -
LLC “ElectroAreal” - - 2 12 -
LLC “KMV” - - - 18 - 80
LLC “Olga-Alternativa” - 12 - 2 - 1
LLC “Anzhela” - - - 5 1 -
LLC “Polet-ZM” - - - 1 26
LLC “Bars” - 15 - 19 -
LLC “Private Security Agency Bar
SB” 1 100 3 - - 35 -
LLC “Noviy Format” - 25 - - - 21 2
Transservice Group of Companie
LLC Technovideo Service, LLC
“Transservice-95” 21 195 28 - 16 77 3 2
LLC “Transfert” - - - - - 1 - -
LLC “Avtoritet” - 36 - - 8 -
LLC “Avto-Express” 125 10 - 65 6
LLC “PSK Logistic Service” 1,379 10 - 717 -
LLC “TIC BE Sokol” - - - 118
LLC Universal Service 91 67 - -
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2007 31 December 2007 2006 31 December 2006
Loans from/to related party Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts
owed by owed to owed by owed to
Interest Interest related related Interest Interest related related
income expense parties _  parties income expense parties parties
Entities under common control:
Goodhall Ltd - 45 - - - 88 - 891
Velga Ltd - 33 - - - 3 - 630
LLC “Noviy Format” 2 - - - - - 25 -
LLC “Avto-Express” - - - - - - 2

The ultimate shareholder
M.video Investment Ltd. (BVI) is the ultimate shiaoéder of the Group.

There were no transactions between the Group andltimate parent during the year ended
31 December 2007.

Immediate parent entity

Svece Ltd owns 69.9626% of the ordinary sharesJ8@"Company M.video”.
Refer to Notes 1 and 30.

Terms and conditions of transactions with relatedries

Related parties may enter into transactions, whigelated parties might not, and transactions
between related parties may not be effected osghee terms, conditions and amounts as transactions
between unrelated parties. Outstanding balandbe gkar end are unsecured and settlement occurs in
cash. There have been no guarantees providedaiveddor any related party accounts receivable or
payables. For the year ended 31 December 200G rihgp has not recorded any impairment of
accounts receivable relating to amounts owed latedlparties (2006: nil). This assessment is
undertaken each financial year through examiniedfittancial position of the related party and

the market in which the related party operates.

Transactions with other related parties
The nature of transactions with related partiessiollows:

. LLC “Sphera Invest” — rented property to the Grogpto the time the properties were purchased
by the Group;

. LLC “Standard Invest” — rented property to the Grayp to the time the properties were
purchased by the Group;

. LLC “ElectroAreal” — the Group acquired inventorglth as at 1 January 2006 from this entity;

. LLC “KMV”, LLC “Anzhela”, LLC “Polet ZM”- relates o the purchase of properties by
LLC “Sphera Invest” and LLC “Standard Invest”;

. LLC “Olga Alternativa” — for the period ended 31 &@&enber 2006, the transaction related to
the purchase of property by LLC “Sphera Invest” ab@ “Standard Invest”. For the period
ended 31 December 2007, the transaction relatdttpurchase of leasehold improvements;

* LLC “Bars” — provided courier services to the Group
. LLC “Private Security Agency Bars — SB” — providstbre and head office security services;
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LLC “Noviy Format” — for the period ended 31 Decemnl2006, the transaction related to
the purchase of property by LLC “Sphera Invest” &h@€ “Standard Invest”. For the period
ended 31 December 2007, the transaction relatezhtal of property;

Transservice Group of Companies, LLC Technovideass LLC “Transservice 95" — provided
after sale and other servicing of the Group’s mamdlise;

LLC “Transfert” — provided logistics and home deliy services;

LLC “Avtoritet” — provided the brand name “Smart“do the Group under a license agreement
and two trading premises in Moscow under a leaseeagent;

LLC “Avto-Express” — provided a car leasing servioghe Group and logistic services;
LLC “PSK Logistics service” — is a merchanize sugpfor the Group;
LLC “TIC BE Sokol” — relates to the sale of privdébdel merchandise to the Group;

LLC Universal Service — provided after sale sengcand other related servicing of
merchandize sold in connection with additional eEnagreements;

Goodhall Ltd — provided financing to the Group;
Velga Ltd — provided financing to the Group.

Compensation of key management personnel of the @ro

The remuneration of directors and other membekepfmanagement during the year was as

follows:

2007 2006
Short term benefits* 116 62
Share-based payments 13 -
Total 129 62

*Short term benefits include salaries, bonusesyahleave, medical and insurance expenses.

During March 2007, the Group formed a Board of Bioes. The number of key management
positions increased from 11 in 2006 to 15 in 200& tb the appointment of four independent
directors.

The Group did not provide any post employment, itesition, or other long-term benefits to key
management personnel during the period other thiatnilsutions to state pension fund and the social
funds as a part of payments of unified social tasalaries and bonuses. Unified social tax paating
to compensation of key management personnel anbtom&million RUB and 2 million RUB
respectively for the years ended 31 December 2002@06 and is included in the amounts stated
above.
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32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has entered into commercial leases &rahtal of retail properties, warehouses and
office space. These leases have terms ranging éetvand 14 years. The majority of the lease
contracts contain escalation clauses. Certain leasgacts stipulate terms requiring the Group to
pay the higher of minimum lease payments or a p¢aige of revenue. The amounts paid in excess
of the minimum lease payments are disclosed asngmmtt rentals below. The Group does not have
an option to purchase the leased premises at thimtgn of the lease period.

Payments recognized as an expense

2007 2006
Minimum lease payments 1,930 1,351
Contingent rentals 10 -
1,940 1,351

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancelgpdeating leases for premises occupied as at
31 December 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

2007 2006
Within one year 2,320 1,511
After one year but not more than five years 7,212 4,450
More than five years 5,751 3,728
15,283 9,689

Future minimum rentals payable under committed;cemcelable future store operating leases for
premises as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 arel@sdgol

2007 2006
Within one year 439 60
After one year but not more than five years 1,998 901
More than five years 2,527 1,466
4,964 2,427

Future minimum rental payments will be subject atue added tax.
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33. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Taxation and regulatory environment

Russian tax, currency and customs legislationbgestito frequent changes and varying interpraiatio
Management'’s interpretation of such legislatioapplying it to business transactions of the Groay m
be challenged by the relevant authorities enabtddvie to impose fines and penalties. Recent events
within the Russian Federation suggest that thectastoms or other relevant government authorities
are taking a more assertive position in their priegation of the legislation and assessments madie a
as aresult, it is possible that the transactibattiave not been challenged in the past may bemhed

in the future. Generally, fiscal periods remainropereview by the tax authorities in respect getafor
the three calendar years preceding the year aktagw. Under certain circumstances reviews may
cover longer periods. The Group believes it hasigea adequately for all tax liabilities based tn i
understanding of the tax legislation.

Management reviews the Group’s compliance withiegiple tax regulations and current interpretations.
Furthermore, management regularly assesses thdipbli@ancial exposure relating to tax contingesc
for which the 3 year tax inspection right has eagbiout, which, under certain circumstances, may be
challenged by regulatory bodies. From time to fpogential exposures and contingencies are ideshtifie
and at any point in time a number of such opemptaitions may exist. Management has recorded a
provision of 87 million RUB (31 December 2006: 3f2lion RUB) for income tax and 7 million RUB
(31 December 2006: nil) for other tax contingenanethese consolidated financial statements as
their best estimate of potential liabilities arggifnom such contingencies as at 31 December 2007.
No tax provisions were utilized during the yeareh@1 December 2007.

Russian transfer pricing legislation introducedlaianuary 1999 provides the possibility for tax
authorities to make transfer pricing adjustments iampose additional tax liabilities in respect 8f a
controllable transactions, provided that the tratisa price differs from the market price by more
than 20%. Controllable transactions include tratisas with interdependent parties, as determined
under the Russian Tax Code, and all cross-bordasactions (irrespective of whether performed
between related or unrelated parties), transactidrese the price applied by a taxpayer differs by
more than 20% from the price applied for similangactions by the same taxpayer within a short
period of time, and barter transactions. Thereifonmal guidance as to how these rules should be
applied in practice. The arbitration court pracfitéhis respect is contradictory.

Tax liabilities from inter-company transactions determined using actual transaction prices.

It is possible with the evolution of the interptéta of the transfer pricing rules in the Russian
Federation and the changes in the approach ofulsi&h tax authorities, that such transfer prices
could potentially be challenged in the future. Gitiee brief nature of the current Russian transfer
pricing rules, the impact of such challenge cameoteliably estimated, however, it may be significa
to the financial condition and operations of ther.

The Group has identified other possible tax cominwies in respect of issues unrelated to customs
or transfer pricing. No provision has been recolidegspect of these issues. The range of potential
exposures and details of individual tax positioagennot been disclosed to avoid prejudicing the
Group’s position.

Customs
As is common in the business, the Group or ana#ill party negotiates and confirms with overseas

representatives of foreign manufacturers, the dfyaptice and attributes of the foreign manufaetur
goods, but the goods may be procured through pdotith affiliated and unaffiliated with the Group.
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Subject to the above, during the year ended 31mleee2007, the Group purchased a significant
portion of its foreign manufactured goods on thattay of the Russian Federation from Russian
legal entities, including Russian wholesalers sellers, which may or may not have imported

the goods into Russia directly. As the Group wasmmlved in clearing customs for the goods
purchased on the territory of Russia, managemenhatbe certain that the entities which imported
the goods into Russia were in full compliance lith applicable regulations of the Russian customs
code. During the year the relative proportion oédi imports from foreign manufacturers and
purchases from the Russian subsidiaries of fongignufacturers has been increasing and

the purchases from Russian wholesalers and resdiereasing.

As described above ifaxation and regulatory environment section, the relevant authorities are
taking a more assertive position in their intergtien of the applicable laws. Under Russian law
a company in possession of goods that were impuaiithdoroven violations of the customs law may
be subject to significant administrative or civéinalties and/or confiscation of the goods, if iswa
involved in, aware of, or should have known thalation of the customs code were occurring.
To date, the Group has not been subject to anfication of violations of the customs code.

Management believes that the Group entities weirgain compliance with all applicable tax

and legal requirements in respect of imported pctejwere not involved, not aware and could not
be expected to know of any significant violatiofishe applicable customs code by the Russian
wholesalers or resellers. Accordingly, managemehhdt recognize any provisions in respect of
such contingencies in these consolidated IFRS dinhatatements and determined that with current
limitations in access to customs clearance docusrieigt not practicable to estimate

the likely potential financial effect, if any, ofich contingent liabilities.

License Agreements

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had a total comenit of approximately 10 million RUB in
respect of SAP licenses and software support. 8inisunt covers financial years up to and including
2012, which approximates 2 million RUB per annurhe Toroup uses SAP software for finance and
human resources.

Further, as at 31 December 2007, the Group hashfii thesecond year of a five year contract with
Microsoft for Microsoft Office software right. Theontract is structured in a way that allows the
Group to prepay one year at a time. The total camenit for the remainder of the contract,
including license fees and annual support, is 34amiRUB. The total commitment is split as

follows:

2008 FY 10 million RUB
2009 FY 11 million RUB
2010 FY 13 million RUB
Litigation

In the normal course of business, the Group isestil to proceedings, lawsuits, and other claims.
While such matters are subject to other uncertsiniind outcomes are not predictable with assyrance
the management of the Group believes that anydiabimpact arising from these matters would not
be material to its financial position or annual igbieg results.
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34.

Environmental matters

The enforcement of environmental regulation inRlussian Federation is evolving and the enforcement
posture of government authorities is continuallypgeeconsidered. The Group periodically evaluates
its obligations under environmental obligationsta current enforcement climate under existing
legislation, management believes that there arggrificant liabilities for environmental matters.

Guarantees
The Group had no outstanding guarantees as at &nier 2007 (2006: 69 million RUB).

As at 31 December 2006 the Group had guarantesad tmrelated party the performance of
a contract in respect of the supply of goods, edt@rto by a related party, to a maximum amount of
69 million RUB.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Group’s financr@truments are foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks which are summarized below:

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure thatentitithe Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximizing the return to stakeholdersugh the optimization of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains umgée from 2006.

The capital structure of the Group consists of dehich includes borrowings (Notes 17 and 22),
cash and cash equivalents (Note 14) and equitiugtible to equity holders of the parent, compgsin
issued capital, additional paid in capital andinetd earnings.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital mamagat program is to maximize shareholder value
while minimizing the risks associated with the Iqgamtfolio. The consumer electronics business is

a cyclical business and as such requires shortftectoations in capital to purchase goods to fatis

the seasonal demand. The Group uses a combin&fimmgeterm loans, short term loans and supplier
credit terms to meet the seasonal capital needssfbine expansion program adds to the capital needs
as the capital and pre-opening costs associatédiatnew stores puts additional pressure on the
Group's financial resources. While the Group hassatablished any formal policies regarding debt to
equity proportions the Group reviews the capitaldseof the Group periodically to determine actions
to balance its overall capital structure througreholders’ capital contributions or new shareassu
return of capital to shareholders as well as thgei®f new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

In accordance with one of the Group’s bank covenydahé Group’s capital ratio, defined as total gqui

divided by total assets should not decrease by thare15%. This ratio is calculated based on
statutory financial statements.
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Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies anethods adopted, including the criteria for rectigmj

the basis of measurement and the basis on whiommand expenses are recognized, in respect of each
class of financial asset, financial liability anguéy instrument are disclosed in Note 3 to thaviicial
statements.

Categories of financial instruments

31/12/2007 31/12/2006
Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Held for trading 32 -
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash aiguits) 5,872 3,968
Available for sale financial assets - 28
Financial liabilities
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Held for trading 16 15
Amortized cost 14,795 13,735

Foreign currency risk management

The Group has transactional currency exposures$ &qjmosures arise from: (1) purchases by

an operating unit with delayed credit terms in endies other than the unit’s functional currency.
The Group does not attempt to hedge this riskpdisidually these amounts are too small to warrant
hedges and the payment dates are too frequenetomtto do a collective hedge; (2) long term loans
which are denominated in Euros. The Group usesdi@hwxchange contracts to eliminate the currency
exposures on loan repayments. The forward excheomteacts must be in the same currency as

the foreign currency item. The Group does not dedigforward contracts as hedges for accounting
purposes.

The Group does not have transactional currencysxpaelating to revenues as sales occur on the
territory of the Russian Federation and are denatadhin RUB.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign curredepominated monetary assets and liabilities
(including fair value of the Group’s forward cortts) at the reporting date are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
2007 2006 2007 2006
usD 2,810 934 43 106
EUR 3,899 2,641 48 -
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currencies efthited States of America (USD) and
the European zone (EUR).

The following table details the Group’s sensitivilya 10% increase and decrease in the RUB against
the relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivitglgsis includes outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items plus the fair valudeiGroup’s forward contracts and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 10% change eidarcurrency rates. The analysis includes external
loans. A positive number below indicates an in@dagrofit where the RUB strengthens 10% against
the relevant currency. For a 10% weakening of ti& Rgainst the relevant currency, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on profit, and thartzals below would be negative.

USD impact EUR impact
2007 2006 2007 2006

Profit or loss 274 83 390 263

The profit or loss impact disclosed in the tableabis mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on borrowings and trade payables atermh

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The following table details the forward foreign ncy (FC) contracts outstanding at the reporting

date:

Foreign currency Contract value Fair value

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Buy USD 80 - 2,015 - (32) -
Buy EUR 74 59 2,643 2,118 48 (15)

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in etarikerest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
long-term obligations with floating interest rates.

There is also a risk relating to short-term raigs t economic and political risks associated with

working in the Russian Federation with predominaRilissian banks who borrow on international
markets.
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The following table sets out the carrying amoumtpiaturity, of the Group’s financial instruments
that are exposed to interest rate risk:

31 December 2007

More
Within than
lyear 1-2years 2-3years 3-4 years 4-5years 5years Total
Floating rate
EURIBOR (1m) and 3m+2.74
to 4.5%
7.39% t0 9.5%
Secured bank loans 2,683 2,127 - - - - 4,810
31 December 2006 More
Within than
lyear 1-2years 2-3years 3-4 years 4-5years 5years  Total
Floating rate
EURIBOR (1m) and 3m+2.74*
to 4.5% Secured bank loans - - 2,053 - - - 2,053

The following table demonstrates the sensitivita teeasonably possible change in interest rates of
the Group’s profit before tax. The analysis belag been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for the Group’s financial instrunsesitthe balance sheet date assuming that year end

debt levels are constant over the year. There impact on the Group’s equity.

Increase / Annualized
decrease in effect on profit
basis points before tax

2007
Changes in the floating interest rates 25 (5)
50 (11)
100 (21)
(25) 5
(50) 11
(100) 21
Increase / Annualized
decrease in effect on profit
basis points before tax
2006
Changes in the floating interest rates 25 (5)
50 (20)
100 (21)
(25) 5
(50) 10
(100) 21

Additionally, the Group is exposed to changes fargst rates as and when it refinances its shari-te
borrowings (Notes 18 and 22), including resettimg interest rate payable on the corporate bonds

during November 2008 as described in Note 18.
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Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterpavily default on its contractual obligations resundjiin
financial loss to the Group. The Group trades vitia recognized, creditworthy third parties who are
registered in the Russian Federation. It is theu@sopolicy that all customers who are grantedicred
terms have a history of purchases from the Gramp)@y individuals who are known to the Group and
can demonstrate they have the financial resouccesver their limits. The Group also requires these
customers to provide certain documents such aspocation documents and financial statements.

Trade accounts receivable consists of a large nuoflmistomers. Ongoing credit evaluation is
performed on the financial condition of accountsereable.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group does not hawnéfisent credit risk exposure to any single
counterparty in respect of trade accounts recedvdbdncentration of credit risk in respect of trade
accounts receivable did not exceed 5% of gross tapnassets at any time during the year.

The credit risk on liquid funds (refer table belcav)d derivative financial instruments is limited
because counterparties are banks with high cratiiigs assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The table below shows the balances of 4 major eppatties at balance sheet date:

Carrying amount

Counterparty Currency Rating 2007 2006

Gazprombank RUB BBB- 201 -
Renaissance Capital RUB BB- 102 87
Russian Standard Bank RUB BB- 57 61
Alfa Bank RUB BB 52 178

The carrying amount of financial assets recordetienfinancial statements, which is net of
impairment losses, represents the Group’s maximxposare to credit risk.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Groanydged a financial guarantee on behalf of
a related party (refer to Note 33). With respeatridit risk arising from the financial assets of
the Group, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arggng from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounteddtinstruments.

As at 31 December 2006 there was one trade debingdo the Group 521 million RUB, representing
78% of the total balance. This related to saleswdolesale customer made during December 2006.
This was a one off transaction and the outstanaingunt was collected in full during the first six
months of 2007. There were no other concentratibiesedit risk as at 31 December 2006.

Liquidity risk management

The Group’s treasury department monitors its risk shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity
planning tool. This tool considers the maturityboth its financial investments and financial assets
(e.g. accounts receivable, other financial assetd)projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a continuifyfunding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts and bank loans. Each year the Grouyzeslts funding needs and anticipated cashflows,
so that it can determine its funding obligationse Beasonality of the business, the store expansion
plan and the anticipated working capital requiretséorm the basis of the evaluation. The Group
uses long-term instruments (loans and borrowirggspver a significant proportion of the base
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35.

liquidity needs. The Group uses short term loatslamk overdrafts to cover seasonality needs. Every
quarter the Group updates its liquidity needs audires facilities with several banks to ensurettieat
Group has a sufficient amount of approved undragmolving facilities. As at 31 December 2007, the
Group had available 11,178 million RUB (31 Decen2@96: 3,403 million RUB) of uncommitted
standby borrowing facilities. The Group can formapply for additional tranches of debt and the
bank will provide additional funding provided atirditions precedent had been met. Additionally, if
corporate bonds are not put for redemption untiI®@&pproximately 47% of the Group’s debt will
mature in more than one year from 31 December 2007.

The table below summarizes the maturity profilthefGroup’s financial liabilities at 31 Decembef20

and 2006 based on contractual undiscounted payments

Less than
31 December 2007 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Total
Interest bearing loans and borrowings - 2,683 2,127 4,810
Trade accounts payable 9,176 - - 9,176
Other accounts payable and accrued
expenses 599 1 - 600
Forward exchange contract 16 - 16
Total 9,791 2,684 2,127 14,602
Less than
31 December 2006 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Total
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 1,583 3,402 2,053 7,038
Trade accounts payable 5,809 - - 5,809
Other accounts payable and accrued
expenses 403 21 - 424
Forward exchange contract - - 15 15
Total 7,795 3,423 2,068 13,286
Fair value of financial instruments
Except as detailed in the following table, managansensiders that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recordg@@mortized cost in the financial statements
approximate their fair values:
Carrying amount Fair value
2007 2006 2007 2006
Financial liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings:
Floating rate borrowings 2,127 2,053 2,083 2,053

EFFECT OF FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS

The first year of application of IFRS was 2006. Ttansition to IFRS was accounted for according

to IFRS 1 “First-time Adoption of International Eincial Reporting Standards”. The date of
transition to IFRS was 1 January 2006. The efféttamsition from RAS to IFRS is as follows:
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Reconciliation of shareholders’ equity as at 31dédelser 2007 and 2006 and 1 January 2006:

31 December 31 December 1 January
2007 2006 2006

Company'’s equity under RAS reported in standalon

basis (unaudited) 6,168 6 4
Other consolidated entities’ equity/(deficit) under

RAS reported in standalone basis (unaudited) 4,303 672 (90)
Cumulative equity/(deficit) under RAS for all Group

entities reported in standalone basis (unaudited) 471 678 (86)
IFRS adjustments:
Consolidation of subsidiaries — eliminating entries (2,058 (345) (8)
Provision for obsolete and slow moving inventorg an

adjustment on supplier bonuses (860 (595) (528)
Adjustments to cost and depreciation of property,

plant and equipment (203, 21 (5)
Adjustments on amortization of intangible assets 47 (28) -
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable (93) (9) (4)
Provision on goods return (66) (42) -
Expenses accrual (595, (35) (20)
Deferred tax 530 209 161
Deferred revenue (304 (142) -
Warranty provision (10) (10) @)
Recognition of forward (37) (15) -
Adjustment on share capital 300 1,492 -
Additional paid in capital (73) - -
Other adjustments (316 (84) (35)
Total adjustments to shareholders’ equity/(deficit) (3,832 417 (436)
Shareholders’ equity/(deficit) in accordance with FRS 6,639 1,095 (522)

Reconciliation of net income under RAS and IFRSieryear ended 31 December 2006 is as follows:

2007 2006

Company'’s profit/(loss) under RAS reported on standlone basis

(unaudited) 22 (2
Other consolidated entities’ profit under RAS repotted on standalone

basis (unaudited) 2,070 756
Cumulative profit under RAS for all Group entities reported on

standalone basis (unaudited) 2,092 754
IFRS adjustments:
Consolidation of subsidiaries (225 (286)
Depreciation/amortization of property, plant andipqent and

intangible assets (244 (99)
Change in inventory obsolescence provision andsaaent of cost of

inventory for supplier bonuses (265 161
Deferred tax 263 48
Deferred revenue (163 (142)
Change in provision for goods return (23) (42)
Deferred cost a7 17
Capitalization of leasehold improvements - 88
Consolidation and other adjustments (769 (101)
Total adjustment to net income (1,443 (356)
Net profit in accordance with IFRS 649 398
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36. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

(@)

(b)

(©)

Long term incentive plan — Series one

During the period under review, 622,500 shares \geaated (to vest in three tranches).
Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 200 7riandgpthe first vesting date

(1 April 2008), 123,000 shares were forfeited. k& temaining 499,500 granted shares,
166,500 shares which vested on 1 April 2008 (traraie) were exercised.

Long term incentive plan — Series two

On 31 March 2008, the Board of Directors approvedadoption of series two of the LTIP

for selected members of the Group’s management t@anmi April 2008, 46 persons became
members of the plan and 409,500 of the sharesmsig for the LTIP were committed.

This allocation forms part of the initial 1,498,682the Company’s existing shares which were
set aside prior to the Initial Public Offering. Wmdhe terms of series two of the LTIP, the vesting
period is three (3) years with 33.33% of the shava®st each April following the grant date.
Participants are able to exercise their 33.33%lement within 30 days of each vesting period by
paying 10 RUB per share to the operator of the yamogafter the vesting date. The participant
must be employed at the anniversary date to exenigsor her right unless the Board of Directors
waives this condition.

SAP commitment

On 19 May 2008, a group entity provided a guarameespect of SAP licensing

and consulting services in the amount of 205 nmilRIUB and 17-25 million RUB

(467,000 EUR to 700,000 EUR) respectively. The amm®to be paid in respect of the
guarantee relates to the usage of 2,500 SAP lisdns@n indefinite period of time, and
consulting services to be provided during the kfié June 2008 to 12 September 2008.

No amounts have been paid at the time of the issuahthe 31 December 2007 consolidated
financial statements.
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